HO-526
The Jacob Wells House
Elkridge

Private Nineteenth and

twentieth centuries

The Jacob Wells House faces south, some three to four hundred feet north of
Montgomery Road, lying some four to five hundred feet east of its intersection
with Meadow Ridge Road.

It is a three bay wide, two room deep, two story high, gabled roof (running
east west) frame (covered,with asbestos shingles) house, resting on a stone foun-
dation with two square, corbeled brick chimneys rising from each side of the cen-
ter of its gabled roof.

Fenestration is partially vertically aligned and otherwise irregular, though
totally rectangular. Entrances appear on the east, west and south elevations of
the house, which is presently in a dilapidated state and abandoned.

The house apparently rests on the log joists and old stone foundation of the
Jacob Wells House, noted in this vicinity in both the 1860 Martennet Map and the
1878 Hopkin's Atlas.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Jacob Wells House faces south some three to four hundred feet north of
Montgomery Road, four to five hundred feet east of its intersection with Meadow Ridge
Road.

It is a three bay wide, two room deep, two story high, gabled roof (running east-
west) frame (covered with asbestos shingles) house, resting on a stone foundation with
two square, corbeled brick chimneys rising from each side of the center of its gabled
roof.

South Elevation

The south elevation features a rectangular entrance in the east bay with a double
rectangular window in the central bay and a larger single rectangular window in the
west bay. Above this latter window rests a vertically aligned, proportionately scaled,
second floor rectangular window. A smaller rectangular, second floor window rests in
the east side of this wall. This elevation appears to have been altered for there is
no plan, uniformity or continuity to its apertures other than the west bay windows.

The West Elevation

The west elevation is decidedly uniform with two second floor windows vertically
aligned to the apertures below. A central, rectangular attic window lies above, what
was once a hipped roof, open porch has caved in so that the first floor of this
elevation is partially covered.

A rectangular entrance door apparently rested in the north bay at this elevation,
surmounted by a three light transon (now two lights).

Windows were apparently double hung with flat wooden sills. None of the windows
remain but a horizontal bar in the attic window indicating a double-hung sash.

The North Elevation

The north elevation holds a first and second floor vertically aligned window in
its west bay, with a smaller rectangular second floor window in its east bay and
evidences of first floor openings beneath.

The East Elevation

The east elevation holds a first floor rectangular entrance in its morth bay, with
evidences of a double rectangular window to its north. The south side of the first floor
has deteriorated to such an extent, it is difficult to discern the true openings here.
Much of the asbestos shingles, as well as the frame siding has been removed, making a
true assessment difficult.

The second floor and attic holds two rectangular windows. Along the eave line of
the east and west elevations is decorative molding. -

Interior
The interior reveals that the west side of the house was constructed first with a
stone foundation on which log joists were placed to hold the first floor. Log beams

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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are also seen supporting the floor of the east side of the house.

Throughout the house the plaster has crumbled and deteriorated to such an extent,
that the lathing between the three by four inch studs, constructed at some nineteen
inch intervals, has been exposed.

What was once a chimney or mantle piece in the southeast corner room of the house
has been covered, while a stove pipe opening appears in the southwest room's brick
chimney with its simple mantle piece disengaged from its place, featuring architrave
supported by flat pilasters.

A hardwood floor of recent vintage rests on the old log beams in the west section,
while random width floor boards, covered with linoleum rest on log beams on the east
side of the house, which appears not to have a full basement.

The foundation is apparently old and may well be that of the Jacob Wells House,
which stoood in this vicinity, noted on both the 1860 Martennet Map and the Hopkins
Atlas of 1878.

Another frame tenant house lies northeast of this one.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Jacob Wells House is significant to Howard County and the State of Maryland
historically as a part of the original land grant of Troy, patented to John Dorsey
in 1695 and composed of some 763 acres and architecturally as an interesting
composite of a nineteenth century foundation with what is reputed to be the original
nineteenth century frame balloon construction of the house constructed by Jacob Wells.

In a title abstract prepared for the Howard County Department of Recreation
and Parks by Joetta Koppenhoefer, parcel two of this abstract deals with property in
this location, noted as Parcel II. It should be noted that Thomas Dorsey, who is
mentioned as the grantor in this abstract was the son of Sarah and Basil Dorsey and
Basil was the son of Caleb who built Belmont and grandson of John Dorsey who patented
Troy in 1695. The will of the Honourable John Dorsey of "Hockley" in 1714 granted
to his grandson Basil, of Caleb, my plantation on Elk Ridge. On the death of his
mother Sarah, Thomas was the full owner of Troy. A summary and abstract for Parcel II,
located in the area of the house under consideration follows:

Thomas had conveyed in trust certain lands to Archibald Moncreiff
and William Hammond for benefit of creditors. On May 6, 1790 the
three granted to Sarah Dorsey 102-1/2 acres of TROY to satisfy a
debt to her. In 1811 these acres were sold to Thomas Lee. The
grantors were Dr. Charles A. Warfield, Ann Snowden, Polly Sapping-
ton, Jesse and Sarah Tyson. I could not find how the property
passed from Sarah Dorsey. The grantors may have been her children
or nieces or nephews. Lee mortgaged the property but redeemed it
in 1830. At his death the property passed by will to his widow
Eleanor. She sold the pracel in 1851 to Jacob Wells and assigned
the mortgage to Thomas Lee. It might be assumed that this Thomas
Lee was her son. The property description indicates that it was
at the northern edge of TROY and located north of today's
Montgomery Road. In 1860 and 1878, according to old maps, Jacob
Wells was located in that area.

Summary of Parcel II, May 6, 1790:

May 6, 1790 Thomas Dorsey, Archibald Moncreiff, NH5/214
William Hammond to Sara Dorsey :
102-1/2 acres TROY

I could not locate the passage from Sarah Dorsey. The following

Koppenhoeffer, Joetta. Troy: A Title Abstract, prepared for the Howard County
Department of Recreation and Parks.
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grantors may have been her children or nieces and nephews.

August 31, 1811 Dr. Charles A. Warfield, Ann Snowden WSG1/305
Polly Sappington, Jesse and Sarah Tyson
to Thomas Lee
102-1/2 acres

December 18, 1822 Thomas Lee to John Beale Howard WSG9/145
mortgage on 102-1/2 acres
October 15, 1830 John Beale Howard to Thomas Lee WSG15/609

release of mortgage on 102-1/2 acres
By will to widow of Thomas Lee, Eleanor

March 3, 1851 Eleanor Lee to Jacob Wells 10/461
90-1/2 acres
March 11, 1851 Eleanor Lee, widow to Thomas Lee 10/467

Assignment of mortgage from Wells

Land records with initials indicate Hall of Records, Annapolis.
Land records without initials indicate Howard County Court House.

Architecturally the building is noteworthy for its fine stone foundation and
log joists which support the first floor. The lathing shown is found in other early
nineteenth century houses in Elkridge, while some of the studs are irregular in form,
revealing early construction.

For these reasons, this building, in conjunction with the Troy Historic District,
should be considered, should its owners so desire, for inclusion to the National
Register of Historic Places, as well as the State Critical Areas Program and any
local landmark ordinance which Howard County may seek to initiate.

1
Koppenhoefer, Joetta. Troy: A Title Abstract, prepared for the Howard County
Department of Recreation and Parks.
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EJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 76.2484 acres

Please see Attachment 1, Tax Map 31

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
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The Jacob Wells House

Hopkin's Atlas of 1878 with outline of Troy and the Jacob Wells House

indicated.
Courtesy of Howard County Department of Recreation and Parks
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U.S. Geological Survey Map
Savage, Maryland Quadrangle
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